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Smeede Hotel

5. Location (Continued)

The Smeede Hotel is located in T. 17 S., R. 3 W. , of the Willamette 
Meridian, Lane County, Oregon. It is situated in Lot 6 in Block 8 of Skinner's 
Donation to Lane County.
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The Smeede Hotel, constructed in 1884-1885, is the oldest surviving 
brick hotel in Lane County. Situated in downtown Eugene, near the City Park 
Blocks and the Lane County Court House, the Smeede Hotel has remained in 
continual usage since its erection. George H. Park, a local builder-contract 
who had built many homes and businesses in the Eugene area, supervised the 
construction of the hotel for Charles Baker, a local businessman. Work on 
the hotel began in July of 1884. An article in the Oregon State Journal, 
July 26, 1884, described the anticipated results. "Contract has been let to 
G.H. Park for the building of a three story brick hotel for C. Baker, on his 
lot adjoining the postoffice. The building will be 52 feet front and 65 feet 
deep and three stories high. The ground floor will contain dining room, 23 
X 45; bar room, 20 X 23; commercial room, 22 X 25; and a store room for rent, 
22 X 40; kitchen, 16 X 24; laundry, 10 X 13; pastry room 10 X 12. The parti­ 
tion between office and dining room will be constructed so as to be taken 
away, so the dining room can be made 23 X 65. The second floor will contain 
ladies parlor, 16 X 25, and 15 large bed rooms. The third floor will contain 
16 large bedrooms. There will be no dark rooms. The rooms will be well 
ventilated with a large transom over the door. The halls running through the 
building are all large. The stairs leading to the different floors are all 
wide and of easy ascent. The building will be all hard finished throughout 
and all the woodwork will be grained in imitation of various woods. The 
building and furniture will cost about $12,000."

The hotel is rectangular in plan. Fenestration is regular with double- 
hung sash windows, two lights over two. The windows of the five-bay facade 
have round arch heads with radiating brick voussoirs and corbelled hoods.Thos 
of the side elevations have elliptic brick arch heads. Brick flues projecting ^ 
above the side walls are intact.

Charles Baker sold the hotel before its completion in March 1885 to 
Stephen Smeede for $12,000. Smeede retained the name Baker's Hotel until 
1892, when he revamped the exterior and changed the name to the Hotel Eugene. 
In 1895 he again altered the structure; this time changing the name to Hotel 
Smeede.

Smeede's 1892 alterations were confined to the facade. He stuccoed the 
exterior and added cast iron corner pilasters and an elaborate metal cornice 
with a dentil course and bracketted pediment over the central bay.

Between 1895 and 1902 the building was extended to the rear^ or through 
to the east side of the block. The second and third stories of the side 
elevations are still exposed. The ground floor facade has been modified 
slightly. The dining rooms and lobby spaces of the ground story are unchanged 
however. The second and third floor plans, including the ladies' parlor, are 
unchanged except that a 10 X 20 floor opening, which carried light from the 
roof skylight down two stories, has been sealed. Window trim, doors, and door 
frames, baseboards, and the rail and spindles of the open staircase are intact 
During the early 1900s, a sheet metal canopy was suspended over the front 
entrance. The hotel's original name, Baker's Hotel, is still imbedded in 
bronze in the front sidewalk.

The hotel remained under Smeede family ownership until 1971, when the 
Eugene Renewal Agency purchased the property. The aim of the Renewai Agency 
is to develop properties within project boundaries which have becomenon-producti 
or could have a much greater productivity. The agency's plan for the Smeede 
Hotel is to retain the integrity of the exterior but to adapt the interior 
into office space.————————— ——————————————————————————————————————
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Representing some of the best early Italianate commercial architecture in 
the upper Willamette Valley, the Smeede Hotel is the oldest surviving brick 
masonry hotel in Lane County. At the end of the nineteenth century Eugene's 
Willamette Street, on which the Smeede Hotel is situated, was a bustling com-- 
mercial center which included the most sophisticated buildings in the county 
Today, few of the old facades remain intact, and only the Smeede Hotel retains 
its historic face.

The Smeede Hotel is associated with the ultimate in social life and cultu 
of an earlier day. The hotel catered to the upper-class visitors to Eugene 
and the wealthy local c itizen by providing ornate furnishings and facilitie 
exotic and expensive menus, and elaborate banquets. A 1902 banquet, which 
honored H.B. Miller, consul to Niu Chwang ? China, featured on the menu Toke 
Points on half shell, Consomme with Cretons, Tenderloin Salmon Maitre D THote!

Saratoga Chips, Fillets of Beef En Champignons, Potato Croquettes, 
Roman Punch, Roast Duck with Jelly, Petits Pois, Lobster En Mayonaise, Englii 
Plum Pudding, Hard and Brandy Sauce, Neapolitan Cake, Angel Cake, Pineapple 
Ice Cream, Assorted Fruits, Nuts, Edam Cheese, and Cafe Noir. One disting­ 
uished guest of the hotel was William Jennings Bryan, who stayed overnight 
while on his 1896 Presidential campaign swing through Oregon.

Many local businesses around the turn of the century gave the hotel as a 
geographic reference point for street location on their invoice statements, 
letterheads, and business cards. As the years progressed, the Smeede Hotel 
diminished in commercial productivity but remained a city landmark. As more 
of the early Willamette Street structures were removed, the hotel's histori< 
significance to the local citizens increased. Today it is a valuable last 
link between the hey day of old Eugene City and the present.
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